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. UNITED STATES ENVIRONr1EtHAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

BEFORE THE REGIONAL ADMINISTRATOR 

In the Matter of: ) 
) 

Hygienic Sanitution Compuny, Inc.· ) I. F. & R. Docket No. Ili-131-C 
) 

Respondent ) 

WITIAL DECISION 

Preliminary Statement 

This is a proceeding initiated under Sec . 14ta)(l) of the Federal 

Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, as amended, (FIFRA) 

[7 U. S. C. 136 l(a)(l)l, 1973 Sunp., for the assessment of a civil penalty 

for violation of the Act. 

On June 15, 1977, the United States Environmental Protection Agency 

(Compla'inant) is su~d J Complain t and Noti ce of Opportunity for Hearing, 

charging flyg.ienic Sanitation Colilpany, Inc. (Hygienic), a Pennsylvania 

corporation (Respondent), with a violation of the Act. An Answer to said 
lJ 

Complaint and RcC)uest for llearin~1 was duly fi l ed and dated July l, lt).77. .-

Ti-COiJnt-Tili~(~e--ofthe-.. C'o"'iii'J)Ta Tnt wus withdravm by motion ~)runted l Tr. 185) 
and a.new Count Three substi'tuted by motion granted (Tr. 192). 
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Factua 1ly. Mr . and l~rs. Hayne C. l·!c• i:o10.r engaged Hygienic 

t o treat their home in Stronystovm , Pennsylvania for termites . 

Hygienic inspected the premises and , as a result, di d treat sai d premises 

on July 21, 1975. The Compla.int herein arose from the manner and means by 

wh.ich said treatment was accomplished and the effects thereof on the surround-

ing environment, pr~marily the fact that the pesticide made its way through 

a drain p.ipe to a nea1·by str eam ·and ultimately to a fish hatchery where 

approximately 2,400 trout w~re killed. 

Compl.ainant alleges that the Respondent violated FI FRA by: 

(1) allm·li ng the pesticide Shell Aldrite 4 Emulsifiable Concentrate 

Insecticide (EPA Reg . No. 201-245-AA) (hereinafter "Shell Aldrite") to 

come into-contact with and substan t ially and adversely affect a stream 

and beneficial wildlife during the ap~ i cation of said pesticide at the 

home of Mr. and Mrs. Wayne C. Weimer , Strongstown, Pennsylvania , to control 

termites; 

(2) applying the pesticide Shell Aldrite to a garden and apple tree ; 

(3) applying the pesticide Shell Aldrite aboveg r ound to the corners 

and eaves of the ~Iei mer home; 

(4) allowing the pesticide Velsicol Gold Crest Termide (EPA,Reg. No. 

876-233 and 8/6-Z_33-/\/\) (hereinafter "Gold Crest") to come i nto contact 

with and substanti ally and adversely affect a stream and beneficial \'lildlife; . 
( 5) applyi ng the pesti~ide Gold Crest to a garden· and apple tree; and 

(6) applyinn the pesticide Gold Crest aboveground to the corn~rs anJ 

eaves of the ~lei mer home. 
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The labeling for the . Gold. Crest st;, ; .• • in pertinent part: 

WARNING 

Do not contuminate feed or foodstuffs. ThisY-roduct is. 
toxic to fish, birds and other wi l dlife. Birds and other 
vlildlife intreated arens may b-ekillcd-:- Keep _9ut of 
] a ke_?~t re_~ms__Q_!::_._~?_onds_. _l?..o_..!.l..Q! ~.Q}LJ:~I.~ere r:un!>!_f_~_?_ 
likfuto occur. Do not apply 1-.rhen weather conditions 
favor drift fro~ areas treated . Do not contaminute 
water by cleaning of equipment or disposul of wastes . 
~Y~lY. this .F.roduct o~~~cified on this label. 
(Emphasis Added) EPA Ex. 3 and 4 .. 

The labeling for the Shell Aldrite states , in pertinent part: 

READ THE DIRECTIONS AND PRECAUTIONS CAREFULLY 
AND FOLLOl~ THEM AT All Tlt~ES . 

Do not ~EE.JY or a 11 ow to drift to areas occupied .Qy 
un.2.!:Q_t~cted hl~!nans_or beneficiul unimals. Do not 
contuminate feed and foodstuffs. Thjurod_uct~ 
poisonous tQ....fj_sh and__1-.rild__!jfe. ~eep out_Q_~lak~_s-L 
ponds and streams. ·-Uo_ not ~QP_l_.y_!.!:!._ _~~.Y._ munner not 

·specified on the label_:_ \En1phasis Addcdl\EPA Ex. 5 and 6.) 

The labels ano EPA's registration of those labels (EPA Ex. 3-6) 

were stipul uted to and admitted into evidence , without objection by 
. 

Respondent . '(Tr. 3-6) While l~cspondcnt did atte111pt, however , to subse-

quently question the authenticity of each of the labels , an affidavit 

(EPA Ex. 9) signed by Mr . William Carson, one of Respondent's witnes~es 

and a participant in the July 21 , 1975 application of the pesticides, was 

. stipu_lated to by the parties .(EPA Ex . 2 and 2A) und admitted into evidence 

-. 

without ·objection by the . Respondent . (Tr. 6, G) This affidavit establishe·s 
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that the pesticides applied by Res·pond· ·d on July 21, 1975, were those 

·registered by EPA. Nr. Carson's affidtlvit, in fact, cites the same · 

registration numbers for the Shell Aldrite and the Gold Crest as set 

forth on the EPA registered label for each of those prodocts. 

Complainant avers that .each of the al legations set forth in sub- . 

paragraphs 1 throu0h 6 above is inconsi stent with the relevant pesticides' 

labeling, and thus is a violation of Sec. l2(a)(2)(G), (7 ·U. S. C. 

S l36j (a) ( 2 )'(G)) . 
. . 

The parties have entered into the following stipulation of fact 

and law (EPA Ex. 1, Tr. 1-2): 

"l. On or about July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation 
Company , Inc. ~·1as u corporation doing business 
in the State of Pennsylvania. 

2. On or about July 21, 1975. John E. Potts was an 
employee of Hygienic Sanitation Company . 

3. On or about July 21 , 1975, William E. Carson was 
an employee of Hygienic Sanitation Company. 

4. The l~esidence of Nr. and ~1rs. ~layne C. ~lei1ner is 
located in Strongstown, Pennsylvania: 

5. .Carney Run is an intermediate streum. 

6. Carney Run supplies the source of water for the 
13luc Goose Fish Hatchery. 

7. Hygienic Sani tution Company has had an approximate 
annual gross sales of $1.2 million. 

8. On or about July 21 , 1975. Hygienic Sanitation 
Company, acting through its employees 1 Messr s. . 
Carson and Potts, used and applied Shel l Aldrite 4 
Emulsifiable Insecticide, a termaticide, in and 
about the res i dence of Mr. and Mrs. Wayne C. Weimer. 
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9. On or ubout July 21, 1'• •. Hygienic Sanitation Compaiw , 
actin9 through i ts empl .. ··cs, ~lcsst·s . Carson and Potts, 
used and applied Velsicol G.old Crest Termi·de , a tcnna

.·_ ticide, in and u.bout · the residence of Mr. and Mrs. 
\4u.yne C. Heimer_. 

10. On or about July 21 , 1975 , Shell Aldrite 4 and Gold 
Crest Termide , as used and app l ied by respondent;. came 
into contact with Carney Run. 

11. On or about July 21, 1975, approximately 2 , 400 brook 
trout at t he Blue Gobse Fish Hatchery were exposed to 
Shell .A1drite 4 ~ a termaticide, and Gold Crest 
Termide, a termaticide , und us a consequence \>Jere 
k i 11 ed . 

12 . On m· about July 21, 1975, Shell Aldrile 4 Emulsifiable 
Concentrate Insecticide, a termaticide, was a pesticide 
V·lithin tlie meaning of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide 
and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C. Sec . 136(u). 

13. On or about July 21, 1975, Velsicol.Gold Crest Tcrmide 
Emulsifiable Concentrate, a terrnaticide, was a pesticide 
\'lithin the meaning of the Federal InsecticideUFungicide 
and Rodenticide Act, 7_ U.S.C., Sec . 136(u). -

Both the Shell Aldrite and Gold Crest labels state that each product 

is to be applied only as specified on the label. The labels of both 

products also state that the products should be kept out of lakes , ponds 

and streams . (EPA Ex. 3 ~nd 5). 

Respondent has by stipulation admitted that its pesticide application 

at the home of the \oleimers eventually entered Carney Run v1hich resulted 

in the fish kill . l{espondent, however, denies liability for other r easons 

which will be discussed later . 

2/ Respondent also stipuliltcd, \'lith minot· exceptions, to Complainant's 
'Ex hi bits 1-1111 ils cv.idcncc . Respondent ' s cxc:cp ti ons arc set forth in CPA 
Ex . 2n and 2C. Rc:;ponclcnt .did not object to any of the samples taken of 
the stream nor of the results of those samples. These samples indicated 
gross pesticide contamination of Carney Run . 

. . 
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Co111plainant has proposed a civil ··· 11:tlty assessment of $5 ,000 for 

each of ttie six alleged violutions or ... Lotal assessment of $30,000 . 

The remaining pl~imary i ssues of fact arc as follows: 

l . Whether the pesticide .~hell Aldrite was applied 
by l~espondent to the Heimer ' s garde·n and apple 
tree; 

2. Whether the pesticide Shell Aldrite was applied 
above ground by RespQndent to the corners and 
eaves of the Weimer's residence; 

3. Whether the pesticide Gold Crest wa s applied by 
·Respondent to the Weimer' s gorden and apple tree; and 

4. Whether the pesticide Gold Crest 'was applied above 
ground by Respondent to the corners and eaves of 
the Weimer's residence . 

Before discussing these issues, reference should be made to certain 

facts \llhich, although the subject of the stipulation previously referred 

to , have been raised or questioned bi Respondent either during the hearing 

or on bri efs . These issues are: 

a) ~lhether Cc1rney Run is a stream; 

b) ~·lhether the chemicals Shell Aldrite and Gold Crest 
arc pesti cides; and 

c) Whether a person other than Respondent caused the 
death of the brook trout at the Blue Goose Fish 
Hatchery on July 21, 1975. ·. 

Hespondent .stipu lated to a and b above Jnd the1·e wus nothing 

inserted into the record to al.ter the facts of the sti pulation . Therefore, 

as to a and b I find that these facts are as stipulated, i .e., Carney 

Run is an intermediate strcilm and Shell Aldrite and Gold Crest are .. pcsti~ides 

wi thin the meaning of FIFRJ\. 
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As to c above, the record is clea•· ··:,lt the fish kill .was . the result 

of the application . of pesticides by Hyy ·il..!r,ic at the Weimer re's idcnce 
.. 

on Jul_y 21, 1975. The Oepartuient of Environmental Resources of the State 

of Pennsylvania (hereinafter "OER") did, in fact , ascertain that Respondent ' s 

application of pesticides at the W~imer residence caused the contamina tion 

on July 21, 1975. tir. Thomas Pr och of OER succinctly described OER's 

investigation of the contamination and stated that the stream contamination 
3/ 

began at the 6" pipe ,- adjacent to the Weimer residence . (Tr . 117-119) 

Mr. McCarthy, also of OER, testified that it was readily apparent 

that the pesticide applicati on a t the home had caused the problem and that 

it wa s not caused by any other source. (Tr. 157-158) Respondent ' s 

application of Shell Aldrite and Gold Crest were the only 

sources of contamination tho t ki 11 ed tiJe opproxi mate ly 2,400 brook trout 

at the Blue Goose Fish Hatchery. 

Discuss i on: 

a ~ Hhcther the pestic ide Shell /\ldrite was appli ed by 
Respondent to the Weimer's gar-d·e-nand apple tree; 

b. Whether the pesticide Shell /\ldrite was applied 
above ground by Respondcntto t he--corners ond eaves ·. 
of t he Weimer's residence. 

The testimony of both Mr. ~layne Heimer and ~lrs. Dal~leen Heimer 

indicates that Respondent applied the pes ticides above ground to the 

garden, apple tree , and corners and eaves of the ~Ieimer resi dence . 
·. 

(Tr . 56-57) 

·. 

3/ .This 6" p.ipe r an directly f r om the Weimer residence to the bank of 
Carney Run . Samples \'/ere taken from above and below .the entrance of the 
p i pe .into Carney Run . N·o contamination was shown above the pipe. Contami..., 
nati on below the pipe i"ndicated many parts per mi lli on. of the cons·tituents 
of·the pesticides in question. {Tr. 125 , 16.3 , EPA Ex. 12 , 23·, 26-2!.L ) 
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~1r . Heimer further ·stat"ed· t hot t1r . ···tt.ts: 

. .. d.idn't actuall.Y apply it (:.ne pesticide) to the 
garden.. Tt :j ust haprened to f.«ll in the garden , the 

··no ... H~r bcu that was under the eaves. He \'/u s n ' t trying 
to apply it. 

Ms. Blackwell: So he was s praying the area that you 
gave a description? 

Nr. l~e i mc1·: He more or less ran the rod up and d0\·111 
the eaves, and, of cou1~se, ·.the spl ash f el l down into 
« flov1er garden that bordered on the side of the hou se. 
Mr. Potts applied the pesticide by r ulling the rod from 
the ground and sprayi ng the pesticide onto the house 
and garden. (Tr . 73) 

Mr . Pot t s , in his deposition, did not r emember spraying the pesticides 

nor discussing the spraying \·lith the \o/eimers . (Supp. Tt· . 45-46) He speci

fica lly de.nied spray ing the flower ga rden . (Supp. Tr. 52) As for the 

:)' spr aying of the corners and eaves, Mr . Potts testified as follows: 

Q. Do you recall that d~y at any poi"nt, 11r. Potts, having 
treated any of the eaves or exterior port i ons of the house? 

A. Ulr. Potts:) They said no. I don't r emember pu tting 
anything up . there . r don't know wh a t vJe had any reason 
for. We put some bombs off in the house but the eaves \'las 
there . r~o; I don 1 t remember doi ng anythi ny, Ol' I don 1 t 
remember Bi 11 do anything on the outside. I don 1 t kn0\'1 
wha t \'la s done for. (Supp. Tr. 20 ; Emphasis added) 

lv1rs. Heimer tes tified that she saw the spr·aying of the cor ner s 

and eaves of t he house and flO\·H~ r garden. (Tr. 7G) 

Mr. Carson , ihe supervisor of Mr. Potts i n 1975, stated that use of 

the pesticides above ground would not have been a common , ordinary procedure 

in 1975. (Tr . 94) Yet , t\·JO pcop.le Sa\'1 M1~. Potts apply pesticides cJbove .• 
·. 

ground to the corners and eaves of the horne and incidentally to the flovJer ()arden . 

Such appli cations are not pe rmitted by the Shell 1\ldrite label which 

a l so states that the pestici de not be used -in ·a · manner not ·prescribed by 
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the label. (.EPA Ex. . 5-6) Additional! ·:: te l-mites, not \'lasps or :bees , are 

target pests of the. pesticides. Thereiore , Respondent ' s applications to 

the corners and eaves and the garden would be inconsistent with the label. 

Fro1i1 the ubove r eferences to the record, und from the· demeanor of 
4/ . 

the witnesses·, f·1r. and 1'1rs. Heimer,- I must conclude that ~h· . Potts did 

attempt to spray the eaves possibly with the thought of being helpful to 
. 

the Weimers: I also conclude that there was not a direct sprayinn 
5/ 

of the garden except as a consequence of the spraying of the eaves.-

As for the . a~plication to the apple tree, Mr. Potts stated that he 

applied the pesticides to the apple tree. (Supp. Tr. 46, 50-52 , 65; EPA 

Ex . 7) ~1r. and 1·1rs . Heimer both \<Jitnessed him applying the pesticides to 

the apple tree . · (Tr. 56 , 76) Mr . l~eimer specifically stated that ~1r. Potts 

sprayed around "the base , t he tru'nk ~f the tree and up the sides and in a 

few of the limbs." 11r . Heimer also testified that Mr. Potts stated he didn' t 

feel' the tree problem 'lias f1·om termites , but he sprayed. it anyv1ay. (Tr. 57) 

Mr. Potts st.Jted that he rodded the tree, but did not spray the tree. 

(Supp. Tr. 19-20, 46, 50-53) He did testify that he had rodded into the 

ground around the tree . (Supp. Tr. 63) Mr. Potts, however, stated in 

his affidavit of October 15, 1975 , prior to his deposition on August 25, 

l97B, th<lt he hi~d spl'<Iycd the su1·face of the 9round helo"' the ilpplc tree. 

(CPA Ex . /) Therefore, it seems fr0111 his testimony, he both sprayed and 

rodded the tree and the ground around the tree . 

.'!/ Mr. Potts ' testimony \'las by deposition on August 25, 1975 , at v1hich the 
ALJ was not present. 

§./ The record i s clear t'hat at the time of this application , neither r~r . 
.. P.o.tts nor..t1r .. Car.son had received any forma l tr~ining .on the app·licat.ion 
o.f pes ticides. (Tl~. 97-98 ) · · 
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A samp~ e t aken of tre ground arcn r: ·' the base of the · tree shO\·Jed the· 

presence of aldrin (a constituent of ~IH.!ll 1\ldr:itc) and heptachlo~ and 

chlordane {consti tuen ts of Go l d Crest). (EPA Ex. 34-36) 

Spraying and rodding of an apple tree is not a use pennitted by 
·. 

·. 

the l<lbel of the pesticide Shell 1\ldrite. Theref ore, it must be concluded 

that Shell Aldritc was sprayed on the su l~face and rodded i nto the ground 

around the il pple t1·ee in contruvention of the instructi ons on the l abel . 

c. Whether the pesticide Gold Crest was applied to the 
Heimer's garden and appletr~e·c-. 

d. Whe ther the pesticide Gold Crest was applied ilbove 
~p·ound to the corners and-eaves-of the Weimer 
residence. 

The. facts set forth in DISCUSSION a and bare essentially the same for 

the allegations set forth in c and d. Ther efore, the discussion 

in those paragraphs are applicable to c and d~ 

. A sample taken of the ·i nside of tile ilppl e tl~ee indicated the pre.sence 

of ch 1 ordane. Other constituents were not detected in the samp 1 e. (EPA 

Ex. 34.:36) This COI'resronds vlith the chlordane found in the soil samp les 

taken of the uround surfucc at the base of the tree . In those sa tnples , 

however, aldrin, dieldrin and heptachlor were al so detected . 

. The spraying of the corners and eaves of a home is not a use permitted 

by the Gold Crest label. Also not permitted by the label is an application 

of Gold Crest to an apple tree . /\ccordingly, such applications are all in 

violati on of the lilbel, which s tates that applications are only to be co.u-

ducted in accordance with label specifications. 

The record is unclear. as to at what poin t one of the pesticides was· 

·used -as. opposed to the other f or · a.ny use . 
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Hr .. Carson \'las responsible for II<. ing the pesticides used on July 21, 

1975. (Tr. -93 ; ·supp. Tr. 17) Yet, f·lJ· . Carson did not even know that he 

had mixed the pesti cide Shell Aldrite. (Tr. 85-G6) Mr. Carson, at the 

hearing, however, stated that: 

... (T)he one can must ht~ve had Aldrin and Chlordane. 

Such a mixture of aldrin and chlordane is a violrition of each of the 

pesticide's label directions for use because each of the pesticides is only 

to be mixed vJith \·tater, not another pestici.de. Given the chemical consti

tuency of the so.il samples around the tree unci the strei.'lm samples, Respondent 

in a 11 1 ike 1 i hood mixed and app 1 i cd the b;o pesticides together out of 

one barrel. Additionally, Mr. Carson stated that only one barrel at a time 

could be.used. (Tr. 95) Mr. Weimer did not reca ll more than one drum 

being used at a time (Tr. 55) , but he. t·ecalled that the spraying of the 

pe_sticide and the basement applicatfon cume from the same drum. (Tr. 66) 

Mrs . Weimer recalled the same. (Tr. 79) Only this conclusion can explain 

the presence 9f both pesticides in the streum and outside. If only one 

pesti cide \-JilS bein~J used at a time, the samples could h.we hcen di-fferent. 

Accordingly, Respondent may also he found to have violated each of the 

use directions of the label by having 111ixed und ilPI)lied the Shen Aldrite 

with the Gold Cr.est pesticide. 

Complainant has not proposed a separate penalty for such violation. 

HovJever, it lllilY be considered in dcternti ni n~ the .ilmoun t of pcnillty should 

one be appropriate. 

Additionally, uS to application of pesticides to a garden and apple 

tree or applying the pesticilles above ground to lhc corner and caves of the 

Weimer home , there is no evidence in the record to indjcate anyon~ · other · 
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than _Hygienic may have ·accomplished such application and conclude that 

liabi!ity for such application shall : imposed upon Hygienic . 

I ssues of law 

A. \~hether the legality of t11e installation of and the 
di~chargc from the _6" pipe is l~el evant and matc1~~al 
to l~0.spond0.nt' s violat i ons of FIFRJ\; 

B. Whether Respondent is a distributor within the meaning 
of FIFRA; 

C. \·lhethel~ the proposed penalty of $30,000 should be 
assessed against Respondent _for its violations of FIFRA. 

A. ~·lhethcr the · legality of the installation of and the discharge from 

the 6" pipe is relevant ~nd matel~ial to Respondent's violations of FI FRA: 

Respondent , in its Ansv1er, alleged that the pesticides hud come into 

contact \•lith Carney Run because of "an unknovm, unauthorized , unla\·1ful and 

i mprope1~ drain device sys tcm ins ta 11 ed and maintained by the property 

owner(s) in contravention of local buildin~1 codes and ordinances and/or by 

virtue of latent conditions of the property of \'lhich Hygienic vtas not la\v-

fully charged ,.,; th notice." Nr. Heimer testified that he did not have 

a permit for the d·ischargc from the 6" pipe nor for the coverage. of the 

drainage systelll·.after it had been installed. (Tr. 46 1 71) 

COPlplainant argues that \-lhether or not there \'las a permit for the pipe 

is irr~levant to Respondent's violations of FIFRA. Essentially, Respondent 
. 

is attempting to argue th.at Lhc ·1ack of a permit for the pipe is lifl inter-

vening or superccdinCJ cause and therefore absolves Respondent from its 

liab'ility under FIFI_<A. 

Compl_ainant has briefed this poi nt thoroughly with the resultant 

conclusion that, if a person is awar~ , or should be aware of an inter-
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vening factor l iabi l ity \'lil ·l ·not be SUI'· ·; ·eded . 
' 

In my opinion i t is not necessary Lv consider this issue of l aw to 

reac h a 'conclusion on this point . Rcspondent ·.,.,as under a duty to ascertain , 

prior to undertaking the ol>plication of t~1e pesticides, \vhether they would 

or could flO\ol ilito a stn~am 01· harm human_s or wildlife. Respondent did not 

exercise reasonable due care in d·iscovering that \'lhich \'/Ould hav e been found 

had Respondent p1·operly in s pecLed tlie He·imer property or asked ,furthe1· 

appropria te questions. 

Mr. Scherrah , Mr. Potts ' manager , testified tha t Mr. Potts had told 

him that he ha'd not atteraotcd to dete rmine \•thether there were a ny springs 

or drains about or around the house. 

Mr. Stapl eton: Oid you ever discuss wi th Mr. Potts 
\'Jhether he hod u ttempt ed to. determi r.e \'lhether there . 
were spring s, drains around .or obout the house? 

Mr. Scherrah: 

~1r. Stapleton: 

M1·. SchcHah : 
would come up. 

Yes , I os ked him 

And what did he say? 

No~ It wasn't illogical question thot 
It never happened before . (Tr. 222) 

Yet, Mr. Potts testified thot he had osked about the springs. 

(Supp . Tr. 11) 

Complainant ' s brief {Gr . 23, 24 , 25, 26 , and 27) sets forth a 

detoi l ed description o f lhc t e~t'imon.v of tk. Potts re l ative to his visits 

to the ~Ieimer hoflle parti cu lurly v1ith n:~spcct to hi s first vi sit . ~·/hile 

most of these assertions of what Mr. Potts did or did not observe are 
·. 

capable of different interprctotions, these references do indicate what 

·. 

seemed apparent at the hear~ng, that Mr. and Mrs. Weime r informed Mr. Potts 
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Of the presence Of tl1e· ~prin~) the OV· · : · o~ll COndition of the basement 

of the house , and til e y<n'd areil , and t·i•. Potts and ~1r. Carson app.arently 

· concluded thai the treatment of the house .and yard area cou ld proceed 

\'lithout incident . It v1as not for Mr. or Nrs. ~Ieimer to make the decfsion. 

It was incumbent l:JPOI1 the a~ents of llygienic to ma ke a t horoug h survey of 

the premises which \·IOuld h<lve disclosed the. spring, the G" pipe , the stream, 

and rossibly even th£! exi stence of the fish hatchery. Mr. ~Ieimer's knm-1ledge 

of the premises and of what might be a conscquence · of the use of the pesticides 
. 

as the result of the layout of said prentises should not have been relied upon. 

t·1r. Potts apparently i~not·ed t·1r. Heimer ' s statement about the dra in 

(Tr. 43). and he did not properly r eact to the statements about drainage 

problems . (Tr. 55 ) 

The facts shov1 that Respondent ~ instead of exercising due care, per-
. . 

formed in a negli9cnt manner ·in its application of the pesticides . 

Respondent was unuer a duty to anticipate any pr.oblems that may have a risen 

because of the toxic nature of the pesticides involved. Respondent fa{led to 

antjcipatc, much less ascertain , any foreseeable problems . Therefore , 

Respondent's liability cannot be superceded . ~1r. Heimer ' s lack of a pcnni.t 

for the pi!Jc docs not excuse not· mitigate Respondent's nc9li9enc,:e. 

[3. \o!hether Respondent i s a distl~ibutor within the meaning of FIFRA : 

The imposition of Civ ·il penalties fo r v·iolilt ions of FIFHA i s·.9oventcd 

by Section l4(il) of the Act , which provides in pertinent pilrt as follm-Js : 
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"(1 ) In General. -- I'm.~' ··.tistrant, conunercial 
app 1 i ca tor ,-;itioTcs.aYc·r-·, deal c. , rettli 1 er. or other 
distributor who violates any provision ·of this Act · 
mi\y be assessed a civil pena lty by the Admirlistrator 
of not more than $5 ,000 for each offense. 

"(2)· ~~iva1:_e~?J?_l_!_c_at<?_l:.:_ -- Any rr ivate 
applicator or other person not included in para
graph (1) who violates any provi sion of this Act 
subsequent to receiving a written warning from 
the Administrator or follo~ing a citation for a 
prior violation, may be assessed a ci vil penalty 
by the Administ~?tor of not more than Sl ,000 for 
each offense." -

Hygienic raises il juri sd ictional objection to these proceedings. 

It contends that it is not a registrant, comnercial applicator , wholesaler, 

dealer, retailer or other distributor included in Section 14(a)(l), and 

that Secti.on 14(a)(2)'.consequentfy governs the proceedings against it. 

Under Section l4(a)(2), Hygienic can be assessed a civil pena l ty since 

it has been the subject of and has received a written warning or a citat i on 

for a prior violation . EPA contends that llygienic is il distributor· of 

pesticides within the ;neaning of Section 14(a)(l}, since it supplies the 

pestic~de which it uses in its exter~inating operations. 

It should be noted that on September 30, 1978, FIFRA was amended . 

(P.L . 95-396, 92 Stat. 819) (Federal Pesticides Act of 1978). These 

amendments now state thut any applicutor who does not apply an unregistered 

pesticide is subject only to a·penalty of not m_ol·e than $1,000 per violation 

[514(a)(2)1 Such appl i cators are not sellers or distributors of pesticides . 

[52(e)(l)l Both pesticides herein arc registered . 

6/--I'f\-wuTd- aTsu--=(o"ffow-i.'tiu.-Cunder Section lll(a)(2), llygienic \>JOuld be 
~-ubj ect to much 1 i ghter j.>ena lt i es. 
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It is EPA ' s position that any vi.ll :d:ions thJt occ1,.1rred prior to . 

· September 30 , 1978, are subject to tho· i•l"OVisions and interpretations of the 

statut<: in exi.stcnce at the time of the violation . I agree . It is also 

EPA ' s policy that all cases , now in existence or to be instituted, based 

on vio l ations pri01~ to September 30, 1978, ure to be processed }n accordance 

vlith FIFRA as it existed prior to the amendments. All·v·iolations occurring 

on or after Septembel' 30, 1978, are to be prosecuted under the Federa 1 

Pesticides Act of 1978 . 

The v1ord "distributor" is not defined in FIFRA. In ordinary 

usage it meilns one who "distributes," v1hich commonly means to deal out or 

spread out units among a number of recipients, vlith no particular manner of 

di~tri bution being specified. 
?J 

. . 

Hygienic's position, ho\'tever, i.s thilt as used in FIFRA, "distributor" 

means specifically one who commercially deal~ in pesticides by selling 

them. Hygienic as serts that it did not sell Shell Aldritc and/or Gold 

Crest, but only used it in the sale of a service . 

The tenns "rc~JiStlAant, conunercial applicator, wholesaler, deuler , 

reta·il et·" \oJhich precede "other distributor,- " all refer to persons 

\1/ho are yenel'ally in the business of supplying or applying pesticides. 

It seems obvious that the term "other distributor" \·titS (ldded to 'muke 

c 1 ear that the jn·cccd i n~J Lerms were not in tended Lo be a cump 1 e te 1 i s t i n9 

of the type::; of conunercia l d·istribution of pesticides \1/hich were to be 

subject t o Section 14(a)(l). 

7_i See £...:_g_.2 _ _lJ_c_bster's New l·lorld Diction.1ry of the American Lanq~.2.9~ 
\Col lege Ldition). 
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The treatment performed by llygieni: ti :;ing a pest i cide pu rchased by 

it \>JuS i n substuncc a comHel·cial distrihution of"a pesticide. It would 

not be accurate to say , as Hygi eni c do·es, tha t f~1rnish.ing the pesticide· 

was simply "incidental" to the rendition. of the service of applyi ng it. 

Hyyie~ic's services were utilized because the pesticides were hazardous 

and must be handl ed 1·1ith care, but it was the pesticide it.self which 

accomplished the destruction of the pests. 

Section 14 of FIF.RA \'Jas added by the Federal Environ111cnt Pesticide 

Control Act of 1972, P. L. No. 92-516 , 86 Stat, 973 (1972) ("1972 Act") , 

1-Jhi ch completely rev1rote FIFRA as it then existed . The purpose of the 

1972 Act ~1as "to change FIFRA from a l abeling lavt into a comprehensive 

regulatory statute that vlill hencefor~h more carefully control the 

manufacture , di stribution and use of p·esti cides ." H. R. Rep . No . 92-5 11 , 

92d Cong. lst Scss . l ( 1971). Section 14, providing for the first time 

for civil penalties \"til~ considered a necessary part of the regulatory 

program: Id. at 25 . 

An expl<.1nation fo r Con~p·ess' r.easons in Section 14 for subj ectin~1 

some persons to mon~ stri ngent sanctions than others is found in ~ 

supplemental r epqrt of the Senate co111mittec on /\gricuHure and Forestry 

on H. R. 10729, the !Jill Hh·ich s ubsequently became the 1972 1\cl. The 

report stated, S. Rep. No . 92-838 (Part II) 92d Cong ., 2d Sess. 23 

(1972): 
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"The amendr:rent [to SccLion 141 of the Co111nittee 
on.A9riculture and Forestry provided for an orderly 
prdbrcssion of penalties based on the seriousness of 
the offense. Thus, starting with the ordinary house- . 
holder, private applicator, farmer, or other person 
not in the pesticide business commi tting an offense . : 
not .deemcd suitable for criminal prosecution the 
Commit tee on Agriculture provided for a milx i mum . 
civil penalty of $1,000. for an offense by such a 
person deemed set·i ous enough for criminal prosecution 
the lilaximum penalty \1/0uld be $1,000 plus imprisonment 
for 30 days. The Committee on Agriculture and Forestry 
felt that an offense by a registrant, convnerciul · 
applicator, \IJhOlesaler , dealer, tetailer, or othet~ 
dist t~ibutor should be tt·eated more ser·iously than 
an offense by a householder. 1\ registl~ant. for example . 
s hou 1 d have greater l<nO\·Jl edge of the dangers of 
pesticides and greater familiarity with the law 
rC!gulatin~J their use. 1\ violation by a registrant 
vJould be rnuch rnm~e likely to have \IJidesprcad and 
seri ous effects than a violation by a householder, 
home gurdener, or farmer. Consequently, the 
amendment of the Commi'ttec on Agriculture and 
Forestry JWescri bed a ci vi'l penalty of not mon~ 
than $5,000 for an off0.nse by. a person in the 
business of milk i_r:~_g_)~ 1 i ng..L.9!_.2.P..IDYJ..!!.9. pesticides. 
An offense by such a !)erson set~i ous enough for 
criminal prosecution would be subject to a fine of 
up to $25,000 and imprisonment for up to 1 yeur." 

Section lll(a)(2) \vith its less ri9orous enforcement provisions \'/tlS 

thus intended to apply only to persons not in the pesticide bus1ness, 

which ·\IJOuld not be true of llygien.ic. Violations by persons not in the 

pesticide busines s were regarded as less serious than violations by persons 

in the pesticide business . While t he report discussed specifically the 

difference ·in pcn.llties , Lhe reasonin~J applies 1·1iLh cqut~ l ftwce Lv the • 
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fact that persons in the pes~icide btJ ~.i . :ess t1re held to a stricter s'tandtlrd 

of ca~e th~n persons not in the pcsti,.tJe . business, and can be assessed 

c ivil peanl~i~s without first having been g iven a written warning or a 

c i tation for a prior violation. 

I t is EP/\ ' s position that the activity of a structurul pes.t control 

ope.rator in supplying and applying a pesticide is a form of distriiJuLion. 

He sells not only a service (the application), but also a product (the 

pesticide). The price paid by the customer necessat·ily reflects the cost 

of the application and the cost of the pesticide. 

In the instant case, ~~gienic is a structural pest control operator. 

In the ordinat·y cours~ of business, ltygienic supplies the pesticides ~tlh i ch 

it app l .ies. Therefore, the uctivity of Hygienic in supplying and applying 

a pesticide is a form of distribution and Hy9icnic is a "distributor" within 

the meaning of Section 14(a)(l). 

The legislative history of the Act, SL~P-~.~· p. 13, strongly suggests that 

the Congress 'intended Section 14(u)(1) to apply to all persons "in the 

pestidde business" and Section 14(a)(2) to apply to all persons not "in 

the· pesticide business . " Congress recognized that a person· in the pesticide 

business has "greater knO\-Jledge of the dangers of pesticides and ... the law 

reg.ulatin9 thei.1· usc" than a person not in the pesticide business and that 

a viol<~tion by·a person in Lite pesticide businc!;:; 'is "utOl'C likely to have 

widespread and serious effects" than a violation by a person not in the 

pesticide business . Therefore, Congress felt that a violation by. a person 

in the pesticide t;usiness "should be lreaLetl1uore seriously" than· a violation 

.. ·.. by a -person not in the pe.sticide business. · Section 14(a) ~tJilS structured to 

\ . · . . 
~ - ---- - - ·-·-·-
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tarry out this l e9islative policy. 

Buttressing the legislative history i·.; the principle that where general 

words foll0\>1 specific, the former are held to the· same class as the latter. 

Under this principle, a catch-all provision is formed which includes all 

of the same class and al1m·ls none to escape by reason of not being. specifically 

named. Garner v. Louisiana, 368 U. S. 157, 02 S.Ct. 248, 7 L.Ed . 2d 207 

(1960) . The persons specifically named in Section 14ta )(l), "registrant, 

commercial applicato,~·, v1holesaler, dealer, retailer," are in the pesticide 

business. Therefore, the genel~al words "other dislributo1·" form a catch-all 

provision which inc ·ludes all pe1·sons of lhe some class, namely all persons 

in the pesticide bu s iness. 

A structural pest control operator is in the pesticide business. 

Therefore, he should be treated more seriously than a pe1·son not in the 

pesticide business and held accountable under Section 14(a)( 1). To inte1·pret 

the J\c.t other'IJise '"ould be to hold a structural pest control operator to 

the same standard of ca re as household.ers, home gardeners, and farmers. 

Such a holdin!J \·JOuld defeat the statutory purpose in having ti'IO levels of 

liabil1ty. A statute susceptible of eithe1· of two opposed interpretc.1tions 

must be read in the manner 1-1hich effectuates rather than frustrates the 

major purpose of thr. lc~Jislat ·ivr. draftsmen. ~!.0.1)_iy_o_v_._._l:!.~'.i_~~d _ _$_~...t.S:'"~·-

33S U.S . l, GB S. Ct. D75, 92 L.ld. liB/ (19'1e). 

It is a generally accepted proposition that r emedia l legislation 

should be construed b1·oadly to effectuate its purposes. Tche1·epnin .v__. Y-ni~Jht,_ 

3U9 U.S . 332, Bl.l S.CI: . 5'1e, 19 L.[cl.2d. S61i (1967). Conuress intended 

FIFRA to protect human health und the environment from the adverse effects 
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of pestic'idcs. ·Thus, FIFH/\ is conside1·cd to be u relllcclial statute and 

s hould be given a liberal inLcqH·cta tion to achieve the Congrcs s i onol 

intent. 

Hygieni c argues that s ubjecting it to liability unde1· Sect ion 14{a)(l) 

is contrat·y to Congress ' intention i n exp1·essly rroviding that the provision 

fpr certifi cotion of app li cators in amended FIFRA sha ll not become effective 

until fi ve years after the da te of enactment· of the 1972 Act (i.e., until 

October 21, 1977). It claims Lllat by so doing Congress intended 

not to hold people vlith in ferior tl·aining to the same l evel of exposure 

for civil penalties as those people v1ho proved their expertise in 

complying with Federa l standa rds by becoming cct·tified conuJlcrc ial 

applicators. 

This argument ignores the distribution aspects of Hygienic's 

operations. /\s hen?tofore found , llygien·ic suppl ies the pesticide 

as v1el'l as ap[)lies it. There is, therefore, in a r eal sense , a .,.lide

sprea~ distriuut1on of pesticides by Hygienic. Given the sta ted 

congressional purpos e of generally subjecting persons in t he pesticide 

business to the more l"i9orous enfo1·cement p1·ovisions of Section 14( a)(l), 

·it is more i n acconJ with lhat purpo~e lo cons Lrue . nal·ro.,_.,·ly ony exe11tption 

of a person in the pesticide business from that section . 
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Hygienic argues that the \-Jords ",· ,~ . her distributor" as used in 

Section 14(a)(l) ore n_ecessarily limi •.~:d by the pt·eceding terms .. .,,horesaler , 

dealer, retajler," to those \<JIJO se ll only in the same manner as those persons 

customarily do. The rule of "ejusdem generis" is a useful cannon of con-

struction , but it should not be used to defeat the l egisla tive purpose. 

Uni_ted . Stat:.e.2_ v. ~?...~2_, 338 U.S. 6BO, 68?.-83 (1950). Here, subjecting 

Hygienic to liability under Section 14(a)(l) i s in accordance with the purpose 

of the statute. 

Accordingly, I found that llygienic is a distri butor subject to li abil ity" 

under Section 14(a)(l} . 

The conclusion that Hygienic is a dis tributor is also supported by 

Pesti cide Enfo1·cement Policy Statement ("PEPS") No . 6, issued by the 

Environmenta l Pt·o tection Agency on Oecembet· 17, 1976, 41 FR 55932 

(December 23, 1976). In construing·a sta tu te, it is appropriate to consider 

how it has ~een interpreted by the agency charged with enforcing it . See 

Amer i can t1eat Institute_ v. EPA_ , 526 F. 2d 442, 450 (7th Cit· 1973); .!.!!_ r~ 

Evergreen HeliCO!~-~-.ers , Inc ., I.F.&R. Docke t No . IV - 214c (EPA) (J•me 10, 

1976); Cf . Skidmore v. S\-J ift & Co._, 323 U.S. 134, 140 (1940) . PEPS No. G 

deals \'li th the EPA's enforcement poli cy with respect to the use. by professiona l 

structural pest contro·l operators of service containers to tran~port cJntl 
B/ 

tempor arily store pesticides pr io r to apply ·in~ them. ·- The stalc111ent 

8/ The enforcement policy state111ent does not explicitly d<;fine Lhc: tcriu 
.. -s tructural pest control operator" but the discuss ion in the stu te1nent ·l eaves 
no doubt thcJt the t en:1 includes professionals who upply pesticides to 
buildinns and othe t· structures. See Pesticide Enforcement Policy 
Statement No. !>, '1 1 FR '111112 (Sept. 21 . 1976}. 
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considered specifically the appl ic_abi l i 1 : l.o s tt~u ctura l pest control 

operations of the followin g prov i sions <11 rJFRA: Section 3(a) . which 

provides tha t no. pe r son may "distribute, sell, offet~ fo r sale , hold for 

sale, ship , deliver for shipment , or recei ve and (havi ng so r ecei ved) 

deliver or offct· to del iver" an um~egistcred pestic ide to ano t her.per sonj 

Section 8(b) making Lhe IJooks and r ecords of any "producer, distri bu tor , 

carrier, dea 1 er 01· any other person \-Jho se 11 s or offe•·s for sa 1 e , de 1 i vers 

or offers f or delivery" any pest ic ide , _ subjec_t to inspection by the EPA; 

Section 9( a) authori zing the EP/\ to enter ond. inspect any r.stablishment or 

othe r place \·1here pesticides " a l~e held for distribution or sale;" and 

Section 12(a)(l) llliJking it unl a\>1ful for any person "to di stt·ibu te, sell, 

offer for sa l e , hold for sule, s hi p , deliver for shipment, or receive and 

(having so received) deliver o1· offer to deliver" to any person any 

pesticide \·lhich is unn~gistcred or aduiterated or misbranded or which, 

or the claims for \·lhich , do not comply with FIFRA in othct· n~spects . 

In PEPS No. 6, the EPA took the position that professional structural 

pest control operators who supp ly and apply pesticides for hire engage in 

the di str ibution o t~ sale of pesticides \-Jith in the 111eanin~J of FIFRA. 

Accordingly, i L \-J as stated that their books and 1·ecords and their !Jre111ises 

where they store pestici<lcs ore subject to inspection pursu<Jnt to Sections U(b ) 

.1nd 9(i.1), and Lhat they urc subject to tiH: pl·ohihitions of S(:clion lL (tl) in 

thei r usc of Lhc service containers to sLore or transport pesticides prior 

to application. 

, PEPS No. G is ~i~1nific<llll becc:~usc it ·i s « l'Curi ndel· that Sect ion 111 IIlllS!: 

be inLet·pr·cLed in the t:ontext o r the cnLi r e s ta Lutc. ~cc U11 ·ite<.l StaLes v. 
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-American Truckinu Ass_9ciat_ion_, 310 U. S . · lll , 5112-43 (1940). I·Jho is a 

d·istributor 1-1ithin the meanin9 of FIFIVi c<Jnnot be determined solely by 

reference to t'hc prohibitions a~Juinst misusing pesticides . Other consequences 

also flov1 f rom whether a person is il distl"ibutor or not. The conclusion that 

Hyg i enic i s« distributor in judging its li ability for misuse of ' a pesticide, 

is consistent 1·1ith the EPA's interpretation of other provis·ions of FIFRA 

regulilting the sale and distributio~ of pesticid~s. 

C. Whether the proposed penalty of $30~000 should be assessed against 

Respondent for its violations of FIFRA. 

Sec t·i on l4(a)(l) of FIFRA prov ·ides that any distributor who violates 

any prov i sion of the Act t!tay be assessed a civil penalty of no t more than 

$5,000 for each offense . 7 U.S.C. 8136 l(a)(l'). ln determining the 

amount of the penalty 1-:hich is appropri<lte the Aclministratot~ must consider 

(i) the gravity of the violation, (ii) the size of Lhc respondent's business, 

and (iii) the effect on the person's ability to continue in business. 

ln evilluatin~ the gravity of the violation, Lhe Adt1tinistrator must 

consider (i) Respondent's history of compliance \·Jith FIFR/\, <1nd (-i .i) uny 

ev idence of ~JOOd- fa'ith or li\d thereof. It is also uppropriate to consider 

the noture of the violations v1hi ch arc the sui.Jject of this procecdiny, the 

environmental t'is ks associ<lted with these viol ations, and the actual environ-

mental hann which was caused by the viola ti ons. 

The focls in Llris case utilitu.tc in f<1vor of cJ hi~Jh penulty or the 

... , maximum-penalty since the Respondent hus been char ged 'llith viol .ation of 

FIFRJ\ previously. (EPA Ex . lll ;}nd 15) Further, t·lr. Carson, the ma·nayer 
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of Respondent's Johnstown off ice for y~~ · - ~ test i fied that the Respondent 

did not train applicato1·s on the pt·opcl .. :l!thods fo r <1d111inistering pest i cides 

before hirin9· the111 c111d send iny them ouL Lo \'/Ol"k for the co111pany. (Tr . 97-98) 

In addition, tk . Carson testif·ied that he believed the training given by 

the Respondent \·tas inadequate . (Tr. lOS-lOG) lie ulso testified' thl!t he 

didn't always read pes liciJe labels before mixing and using pes ti cides . 

(Tr. 103) In fact, aftc1· comp l et-ion of lhe application to the l·ieirner 

residence , Nr. Carson could not state \•that pesticides hJd been applied . 

{Tr . 98-99) !It a mi n·imum, it Vlu S neg l i~ent 'to apply the Shell Aldri te 

and Velsicol Gold C1·est vthen they knew or should have knmm that there \"ere 

underground sp1·i ngs under the t·leimer premises. t11· . and Hrs. ~Ieimer, 1-lr. Proch 

and l-Is. Set1·ight heard these springs . (Tr . 56, 75, 119, 147, 148 and 153) 

Also , ~1r. Potts, Respondent's employee , kne\'1 that the water supply for the 

~le imer residence came fro111 an underground spring on the premises. ( Supp. 

Tr . 8-10) Clearly, the application of these pesticides to Lhe roof eaves 

and the apple tree constitute violations of the label directions for use and 

Section -12(a)(2)(G) of the /\ct. Horeover, these cre(ltcd a serious environme ntal 

risk to humans by spra_v·ing the pesticide around the \-Ieimer family. ~lo 

warning or p1·ccautionary statements about inlwlation of the pes"tic.ides being 

sprayed was given.to the Weimers. (Tr. 57-58) 

In detemini r)g the appropri ate penalty to be as sessed , the Administrative 

Law Judge may consult and rely upon the Guidelines for the Assessment of 

Civil Penil lt ics ("Gu idelines "), published ·in the Federul Hr~gistcr at:_ 39 FH· 

2/711. 40 CFR 5516!.!.46 and 168 . 60 {July 1, 1977). These regulations 
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prov i de further that, in his discretion. :lf~ may increase or decrease 

this amount. 

The Guidel·i ·nes fll·ovi<.le for the establishment of the maximum civil 

penalty for each offense si nce l~e spondent is a Category V cotupiln_v v1ith 

gross sales of Jppr-oxim.:ttely $2 million annually (Tr. 250) ilnd si1ice it 

vtas highly prob<1ble that there 1'/0uld be odverse effects caused by these 

violations. Indeed , a serious fish kill resulted and extensive cl ea n-up 

operations vtere necessary to mi ti~ate the adverse environment«l impac t 

of these violations. 

lnitially, it must be pres umed that assessment of il civil penalty 

pursuant to the Guideli11es \-Jill not affect the ability of the Respondent 

to continu-e in bus iness . 40 CFR 5168.43 Jnd Guidelines Section IC(l)(c), 

39 FR 27711-12 (July 31, 1974). 

The /\dministrat'ive La\v Judge and the Admin"istrator may, ·in their 

disc1·etion, reduce the renulty pt·oposed insofar as is necessary to penni t 

the l~espondent to continue in business provided the Respondent submits 

bona fide financial i nfonnation ~tthich conforms to generally recogni zed 

accounting Jn·ocedures ilnd \·lhich proves thi.1t assessment of a given pen<.llty 

w i 11 not per111i t it to con L i nue in l>u s i ness. 

In this proceeding, lhe Respondent has failed to provide u relial;le 

and persuasive sho\v·ing !.hilt it will be Ullilblc to continue in busine~s if 

a $30,000 penalty is assessed. Although the Respondent claims, through 

its treasurer, ~1r . Lm·1ery. Lhat it is unable t.o pay any penalty, (Tr·. 258-~59), 

it hils not p1·ovidcd adcrJuilt.e tloculllc.ntution of th ·is claim. 
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t·1r. Lm·Jcry's testimony is son1Cv1hat i1wonsistent. It indicates that 

the balance sheets tJnd othe t~ financial l: uuenls submi ttcd into evidence 

do not accurutely present the econoHlic status of the Respondent. t-lr. 

Lowery has testified that he is fumiliar v1ith the financial statements 

he pres en ted and that they fairly und accurately set forth the fi n.anci a 1 

status of the COiilp(Jny for Lhe applicable time periods. (Tr. 245 , ?.47, 

248 , 2119 and 299) Hovtevet·, he a l so testified that there are no entries on 

the bal ance sheets for accounts receivable ulthough the Company had 

receivubles (Tr. 262) and he krlO\·ts that this data is "re levan t." (Tr. 294) 

He doesn't knov1 the details sunounding the $5,000 loan fl"OHI Central Penn 

[3Jnk. (Tr. 263-264.) He doesn't kno\·t the basis of the $2"/ ,033 .39 liability 

listed us m-1in9 to Gcor~1e l3n:hm, thr. fo rmc1· president of the Respondent . 

(Tr. 265-266) 

Respondent failed to sustain the burden that either the Respondent 

will be unabl e to continue in business if the penalty is assessed or 

special drcu111stances exist v1hich militate against the proposed penalty. 

Contrary to Respondent's churrJcterization of the record, the r ccnrd 

indicates thilt Respondent only borrov1ed ·moncy on~- ti1ne to meet its payroll 

(T1· . 2S9) and l~espondent's ouLstandin9 l oa11s on i ts fleet of cars \llld 

trucks is only $!3Q,l13 whil e the net book value of thi s fleet is $1!33,592.07 

(Hesp. Ex . 2} . Tlic1·c i~ 110 Lesti111ony on Lhe n1rJrkct value of Lllis fl eet , but 

one cun assume that ·it is upproximale ly CCJ ual Lo the net book Villue or 

the fl ee t which is the purchas~ price minus the accumulated deprecio.tion. 



! 

I 

I 

-7f~. 

Respondent al so a rgues that t11·. L, , .. : .. ,·y's testimony was unchallenged. 

Complainant di9 not offer a ny r ebuttal \<Jitness to address the Respondent's 

fi nanci a 1 ex hi bits \•lhi ch were presented to it for the f irst time at the 

beginning of ~1r. L01·1ery's testin1ony. llowever, even recognizing Ulat 

Mr . Lov1ery had only recently been employed by llyvieni c . his testimony 

is inconsistent, inco1:1plete and n{)t persuasive. Fi 1·st , he 

testifi ed thdt he 1·1a s familiar 1-1ith the financial statements he !Jresented 

and that they fairly and accurately set fol'lh the finuncilll status of the 

Company. Lat~1· , he con tradi ctecJ hi111self, adulitted he ~t1as not familiar 

with the busis f01· s eve1·a1 of the en tri es under curn~nt liubilities a nd 

admitted that accurate infonnntion on the value of Respondent's accounts 

receivable is rel evant thoug l1 this valu e does not a ppear in the finantial 

statements submitted by him. 

Res pondent ha s not subulitted any financial evi dence 1·1hich confor·ms 

to generally recognized account'ing procedures in accordance v1ith 

Sections . IC{l)(c) and ID(2)(c) of the Guidelines for Assessment of Civ ·il 

Pena 1 ties. I mus L concl ude Lllil t: t: ltc pena lty p1·opos ed under Lite Gui uc 1 i nes 

wi11 not affect the ability of Respondent to continue in business.· 

:·~ .. · ··- ·- .. ·-·-
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FINDINGS Of fi\CT /\NO t : :LUSIONS Of LA\-! . . 

/\fte1~ corisidc1·ution of Lhc entire r ecord and the proposed findings 

and conc l usions submit t ed by the parties, I make the follo\oting ~inuings 

and conclusions of la\1/. To th<? extent prorosed findin~1 s und conclusions 

are not included, I huve rejected them as either not beinD supported l>y 

a prepond~runce of the evidence , 01~ as being unnece-ssury for the u l t i mate 

decision reached . 

Findings of Fact 

1. On or about July 21 , 1975, Hygienic Sanitation Company was a 

coqJOI'ation doinCJ business in the State of Pennsyl vania with its office 

and r>rincipul place of business ·located at American and Wingohocking 

Streets , Philadel phiil , Pennsylv«nid 19104 . 

2. On or about July 21, 1975, John [. Potts vtas an e111ployee or 

Hygienic Sanitation Compilny . 

3. On or ubout July 21, 1975, Williom E. Carson wus <ln employee 

of Hygienic SanitJtion C0111pany. 

4. The residence of tlr. and. tks. vlilyne C. Hei111cr is loca t ed in 

StronDstown, Pennsylvar.iil and \'JilS so on July 21 , 1975. 

5. CJrney run is on i n tenuediate stream. 

6 . C;1rney Hun suppl ies the source of Vtiltcr for lhe Blue Goose 

f i sh lla t che•·y. 

7 . Hygienic S<mitation Compilny has an annuul gross S<llcs of 

ilpproximatcly $2 million. 
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8. On o1· about July 21, 1975, lly· ; lie Sanitution Company , acting 

through its e111pJoyecs, ~1cssrs. Cnt·son iJrH.J Potts,' used and applied Shell 

Aldl~ite 4 Emulsifiable lnsecticidc, a tcnnut"icide, in and clbout the 

res i dcnc.e of 111·. un·d !·1rs. \~uync C. \•:e ·irner. 

9. On or about July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sunitation Company, acting 

through its employees, 1·\essrs . Ca1·so~1 and Potts, used and upp lied Velsicol 

Gold Crest Tennidc, u tcnnat'icide, in anti about the t·eside11ce of f·1r. und 

t-:,·s. \~aync C. \·leiu1e1·. 

10. On 01· ubouL July 21, 1975, Shell 1\ldl·ite 4 und Gold Crest Termide, 

as used and applied by Respondent, came into contact with Carney Run. 

11 . . On or about July 21, 1975, approximately 2 ,400 brook trout at 

the Blue Goose Fish lliltclle1·y \·.'c1·e exposed to Shell Aldrite 4 , a termuticide, 

and as a consequence were killed. 

12. On or about .July 21 , 191!, u.ppr·oxi111ately 2,400 brook t1·out at 

the Glue Goose Fish llatche1·y v1e1·e exposed to Gold Crest Tennide, o tenno-

ticide, ·anti oS o con ~,equ cnce V/Cl'C killed. 

13 . On or about July 21, 1975, llygicnic Sanitu.tion , acting through 

its ernployec~s, Mcssr~ . Carson <nrd Potts, used u.nd ilpplied Velsicol Gold 

Crest Ternride to tlw Heimer's !J{lrdell and ilppl(~ Lree. 

14. 011 o1· abuul .J11l y 21, 197~), IIY!Iienic SaniLaLion, acting th1·ough 

its employees, Ncssrs . Cilrson and Potts, used und applied Vclsicol Gold 

Crest Ternlicle above ground to the cornel~s and caves of the Heimer ' s rcside.ncc . 

15. On or about Jul_y 21 , l97S, Hygienic Sanita t ion , actin9 thl'Oll~lh 

'its employees, f·1e ssrs. C.:-.1·son and Potts , u~ed unJ .:~pp 'J ·icd Shell 1\l<lr-iLc t1 

above ground to the Weimer's residence . 
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16. On Ol' about July 21, 1975, ll•:• : ~t:nic Sanitation, actin9 through 

Hs employees, Jlessrs. Cilrson and Pott.r., used and applied Shell /\lddte 4 

to the Wcintet'·s· 9a1·den and apple tree. 

17. /\fter the ilpph<:ation of the Shell /\ldrite 4 und Gold Crest 

Tennide and the re~ultilnt conLutninution of the son under the t101ne of 

Hr. and ~1rs. \-layne C. Heimer and the. resultant contomination of Cil1·ney 

Run, the Heil!ter hou•e \·las relocated on the some premises ond the soil under 

the home 'fluS excavat~d, packaged, unc.l ch~posited in a sanitary landfill. 

Conclusions of Law 

1. On o1· about July 21, 1975, Shell /\ldrite 4 Emulsifiable Concen-

trate Ins.ecticide, il tcrmaticide, vlilS «pesticide \'l ithin the mean ·ing of 

the Federal Insecticide , Fungicide and Rodenticide 1\ct, i U.S.C., Sec. 136(u). 

2 . On o1· ilbout July 21, 197S, Velsicol G-old Crest Tet·nride Emulsifiuble 

Concentrate, a termilticide, Vli!S a pesticide \vithin the meaniny of the Federa l 

Insecticide, Fun~Jicide ond Rodenticide 1\ct, 7 U.S.C., Sec. 136(u). 

3.· Hygi enic SilnHution Company , on ~uly 21, 1975, \vas a distributor 

of pesticides, 7 U.S.C. Sec. 136 l(a). 

4. On Ol' about ,July 21, 197~, Hygienic Sanitation Company , actin9 

throu~th its employee!;, t·1cssrs. Cilrson iltH..l Potts, distributed !.he pe.sticides 

Shell /\ldrite 4 Jnd Vclsicol (;old Cr est TenniJe to t·11'. <:tnd t·1rs. \o/Jync C. 

~Ieimer . 

5. On or Jbout July 21, 1975, lly~)ienic Sanitotion Comp.1ny al)plied 

Shell 1\lclritc 'I in il lllilrliH~r incons ·istcnt \vith its lubelling by ilpplyill~J 

it to the 1-lcitucr's ~)a rden ;mel Jpple L1·ce, and Lhus vio1clLcd 7 U. S.C. 

S 13Gj ( o·) ( 2 )( 9). 
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6. On or about July 21, 1975, ltyqi· t.ic Sanitation Company app1ie9 

S~ell Aldrite 4 in a mt:~n ner .i nconsister, ; i·tith its labelling by ilpplying it 

above ground to the corners and e«vcs of the \o/eimet·' s residence and 

thus violated 7 U.S.C. 5136j(a)(?.){g). 

7. On or t:~bout July 21 , 1975, Hygienic Sanitation Company applied 

Shell Aldrilr. 'I in J. tnJnncr inconsistent \<Jilh ils labcll ·in~l by t:~pplying it 

to the \-Ieimer's n:~sidcnce so as to a1lm">' the pesticide to cot:te into contac t 

\'lith a stream and benc.:ficial vrildlife and thus violated I U.S.C. 5136j(a)(2)(g) . 

8. On or about J uly 21 , 1975 , llygienic .Sanitation Company applied 

Velsi col Gold Cres t Termide in a llttJnncr ·inconsistent \·ti th its lobelling 

by applying it to the Heitner's garden and appl e t1·ee, and thus violated 

7 U. S . C. s l36j (a ) ( 2 ) ( ~J) . 

9 . On or abou t July 21, 1975 , Hygi e nic Sonita tion Comp<111y applied 

Velsicol Gold Crest: Tennide in a nwnnei· inconsistent \'lith ils labelling 

by applying it abovr. uround to the corners and eaves of the Heimer 1 s residence 

and thus violated'/ U.S.C. 5136j(a)(2)(~1). 

10 . . On or about July 21 , '1975 , Hygienic Sanitation CompJny applied 

Velsicol Gold Cres.t Te nnide in il manner inconsistent vlith its labelling 

IJy applying it to the Heimer ' s residence so as lo Jllow the pesticide to 

come into conlact.\o~ith a stl'CJt:l and beneficial wildlife and Lhus v·io "l.tlcd 

7 U.S. C. 51 36j (a) ( 2) . 

11. For the Jbove-mentioncd violations of FlFR/\, f~espondcnL i ~ subject 

Lou civil JH!n.:tlty under Section 1'1 (a)(l} of FIFH/\, 7 U.S.C. 5136(,1)1. 

12. Takin0 inlo cons'ic.Jcration the s ize of H<~sponucnl's bus ·incs s , 

the effect on Respondenl 's ubility to ·continue in business , und the gravity 

---·--- .,_ - - . 
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r-' ', ~ o( Lhc v·io l tll"ions (inc l udin~J Hesponuenl. '- prior history of viola ti ons of 

FI FR/\) , it is deterurined that a pena lty·!" $10 , 500 i s appropriate. 

CONCLIJS I ON 

Complainant has proposed a civil pcna1ty or $!),000 ·fol· each or s ·ix 

sepa1·ate violations, (_s_~~-~---~· p. 2) for a total of $30,000. 

a~ree that the full IH?It·llty of $5,000 should be assessed relutive 

to the fact that the pesticides Shel~ Ald1·ite 4 bnulsifiable Concentrate 

Insecticide and IJelsicol Gold Crest Tennidc \oJet·e allowed to come into 

contact \oJith and sull:;tcJnLially iJnd advcr·sely_ufrect a stn~ilm untl beneficinl 

\·lildlife . llo1·1ever, since the recot·d indicates th.lt both pesticides loJCl"e 

used and it is not clcut' to I·JilaL extent 01· amount or at \·Jha t poi n ts on the 

premises either vtas used, t·k. Carson thinkin9 he \·Jas using only one of 

them , I consider this to be one violat~on und not two separate violations . 

A civil penalty of $5,000 is assessed for such violation. 

The rodding and sproying of L11e ilpple tJ·ee und the spruyin~ of the 

corners and eaves do ccnstilute 111isuses for \1/hich pena l ties shall be 

assessed . It seems obv i ous that these services \·/ere pe1·formed by tk. Corson 

and t1r. Potts 1<1ith Lhe thought i n 1:1i nd or assistin!J the Heimers· in 1·esolvin9 

problems fot· 1-1hich tltey vtr. t·e not hired. l n spite of this gt·atuitous effort, 

·i 
both 111en should have knmm LlwL to pl'OC<~cc.J \·lith sucl1 t r eatment \voulc.J be in 

I violc1Lion of label uses. Tltis is one of Lhe types of actions whic.h Lhis 

la\v is intended to halt. Therefore, a civil penalty of $2,500 is assessed 

for cJch violation for a tolal of $5 , 000. 

The spraying of the garden wus only incidental to the other misuses 

and was not i ntentiona ll y «ccompli shed. llo\\•cvcl· , c1ga in this is a 111isuse of -

\ __ 
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the pesticide5 <Jnd vmn·unts. assessment •. r J civil penalty of $500. 

The total civil penally assessed 1. ··~by i s $10 , 500. 

FINAL OROCR 
2_1 

Pursuant to Seclion 14(i1)(1) of. the rederal Insecticide, Funui ci de, 

and Rodenticide l1c:., i\S Jrnended , I U. S.C. Section 136 .l_(a)(l) (Supp. V, 

1975) , u civil penalty of $10 , 500 is a ssessed agai nst Hespondent, lly~ieni c 

Sa nita tion Company, Inc., for the viola tions Hhich have been established 

on the comp l aint , us utnended , i ssued on June.l5, 1977 und lly9ienic is 

ordered t o pay this amount by cashier ' s or certified check , payable to 

the United States of Amet"ica, v1ithin sixly duys of r eceipt of this final 

order. 

ii:~~f~--~~ l: th·Ji1rd B. Fit~.l:~· 
Admini s trative Law Judge 

December ?.1 , .1 9/fl 

- - --- -·---- .. - - ·-·--

9/ lJn less an i1ppt~ol is 1.i1ken by Lhe fi I inq of exceptions pursuilnt t.o 
Section Hifl.5 '1 of the rul0s of JWoclicc, IJU C.f.IL lGB.Sl, or· the l~eqi onal 
Admini s trator elects Lo r evi cH this deci si on on his own moti on , the order 
shall become the f ina l orde1· of the Adm·inistrator . See 40 C. F. IL 1G8 . 46(c) . 

I __.. - - .. ·- -·-- - ·-. ·- . 


